IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET A5 AT MARCH 31, 2019

Tin Mn)
Sr.
No Particulars Note No. | AsatMarch 31, 2019 | As at March 31, 2018 As at April 1, 2017
ASSETS
1 |Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 4 1,59 5.22 329,83
(b) Receivables
(i) Trade receivables 5 117.07 B4.06 17.27
(i) Other receivables 5 0.47 0.10
(¢} Loans 6 396.70 150.00
{d) Investments 7 - 295.34
{e) Other financial assets 8 15.82 0.03
2 Non-Financial Assets
(a) Inventories ] 197.51 . ;
(b) Current tax assets (net) 4.73 4,73 G.88
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 10 293 3.00 6.71
(d) Other non-financial assets 11 0.52 0,09 0.07
Total Assets 737.34 542.57 360.76
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 Financial Liabilities
{a) Payables
Trade payahles 12
{i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 24.25 26.74 8.92
{b) Other financial liabilities 13 13.85 39.88 6.67
2 Neon-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 27.58 8.26 .
(b) Provisions 14 7.39 865 2.56
{c) Other non-financial liabilities 15 43,90 17.37 1.94
3 EQUITY
{a) Equity share capital 16 352,25 352.25 352.25
() Qther equity 17 262,12 89.42 (11.58)
Total Liabillties and Equity 737.34 542.57 360.76

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(Tin Mn)
3; Particulars Note No. 2018-19 2017-18
1 Revenue from operations
Fees and commission Income 18 496,36 322.22
Total revenue from operations 496.36 322.22
2 Other income 19 40.85 57.50
3 Total income (1+2) 537.21 379.72
Expenses
{a) Finance costs 20 4.48 6.96
(b) Fees and commission expenses 2213 23.85
(c) Impairment on financlal instruments 21 2.43 0.24
(d) Purchases of Stock-in-trade 201.86 -
(e) Changes in Inventories-stock-in-trade (197.51) -
{f) Employee benefits expenses 22 197.65 151.45
(e) Other expenses 23 62,70 54.84
4 Total expenses 283.74 237.34
5 Fmeit befora tax (3-4) 243.47 142.38
6 Tax expense:
(a) Current tax 24 70.31 38,23
(b) Deferred tax 24 019 2.52
7 |Profit for the year (5-6) 172.97 10163
8 Other comprehensive income
(a) (1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 22.1
- Remeasurements of Employee Benefits (0.40) (0.90)
i t lating to it that will not b lassified fi |
(I} Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 2% 012 i
Subtotal (a) {0.28) (0.64)
(b) (i) Iterns that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal (b) = "
Other comprehensive income/(loss) (a+h) (0.28) (0.64)
9 Total comprehensive income for the period (7+8) {Comprising profit and other
comprehensive income/(loss) for the year) 172.69 100.99
10 Earnings per equity share
Basic (Rs.) 25 4,91 2.89
Diluted (Rs.} 25 4.91 2.89

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Staternents
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IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Zin Mn)
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
A, Cash flows from operating actlvities
|WNet profit before taxation 243.47 142,38
Adjustments for:
Provisions for employee benefits (0.54) 191
Profit on Sale of Investments -Realised 1.63 -
Profit on Sale of Investments -UnRealised - (27.75)
Impairment on Financial Instrument 243 0.24
Interest income (42.48) (29.75)
Interest expenses 4.48 6.96
Operating profit before working capital changes 208.99 93.99
Changes in working Capital :
(Increase)/ Decrease In Financlal/Non-financial Assets other than Inventory (52.03) (67.19)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Financial/Non-financial Liabilities 2.90 69.74
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventory (197.51) -
Cash generated from/ (used in) operating activitles (37.65) 96.54
Net income tax (paid) / refunds (50.99) (26.37,
Net cash generated from /{used in) operating activities (A) (B8.64) 70.17
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments (10,920.86) (13,876.93
Sale of investments 11,210.22 13,609.36
Intercorporate Deposit - given (5,014.30) (2,721.00
Intercorporate Deposit - repaid 4,767.60 2,571.00
Interest received 42.48 29.75
INet cash generated from/(used in) investing activities (B) 85.14 {387.82
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Intercorporate Deposit - taken 3,384.80 6,935.00
Intercorparate Deposit - repaid (3,384.80) {6,935.00
Interest paid (4.48) (6.96
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (C) (4.48) {6.96
Net (decrease)/increase In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {7.98) (324.61
Opening Cash & cash equivalents 5.22 329.83
Closing Cash & cash equivalents (2.76) 5.22
Reconciliation of Cash & cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Ind AS 7 {2.76) 5.22
Add: In Fixed deposits with maturity more than 2 months 2 .
Cash & cash equivalents (Refer Note 4) (2.76) 5.22

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY F.Y 2018-19

{Tin Mn)

Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company
Other Equity
Equity Share Securities

Particulars Capital Premium Retained Earnings| Total Other Equity Total
Balance at the 1st April 2018 352.25 1.40 88.02 89,42 441.67
Profits for the year - - 172.97 172.97 172.97
Other Comprehensive
Income/(loss) - - (0.28) (0.28) (0.28)
Balance as at 31st March 2019 352.25 1.40 260.71 262,11 614.36
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY F.Y 2017-18

(T in Mn)

Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company
Other Equity
Equity Share Securities

Particulars Capital Premium Retained Earnings| Total Other Equity Total
Balance at the 1st April 2017 * 352.25 1.40 (12.98) (11.58) 340.67
Profits for the year - - 101.63 101.63 101.63
Other Comprehensive
income/{loss) - - (0.63) (0.63) (0.63)
Balance as at 31st March 2018 352.25 1.40 88.02 89.42 441.67

* Refer Note 3

Securities Premium

Securities premium account includes the difference between face value of equity shares and consideration in respect of shares Issued,
Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other
distributions paid to shareholders.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements of IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited for the year
ended March 31, 2019

Note 1. Corporate Information:

IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (the "Company") is a subsidiary of IIFL Wealth Management
Limited. The Company is mainly engaged into undertaking and carrying on the office or offices and duties of
Trustee, custodian trustee, executor, administrator, liquidator, receiver, attorney or nominee of, or for funds and
assets of all holders including corporate bodies, high net worth individuals (HNI's), Hindu Undivided Family (HUFs),
Private or Public Trusts, Mutual Funds, offshore funds, pension funds, superannuation funds, provident funds,
venture capital funds, private equity funds and to hold the property in trust for the benefit of the beneficiaries of
the Trust. The Company is registered with SEBI as an Investment Advisor.

Note 2 —Significant Accounting Policies
a) Statement of Compliance:

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and amendments thereof issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs in exercise of the powers conferred
by section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied except where compliance with other statutory
promulgations require a different treatment.

Upto the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements In accordance with the
requirements of Indian GAAP (IGAAP), as per standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006. These are the Company’s first Ind AS financial statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is April 1,
2017. Refer note 3 for the details of first-time adoption exemptions availed by the Company.

b) These financials statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their
meeting held on May 13, 2019

c) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when the promised goods and services are transferred to the customer i.e, when
performance obligations are satisfied. Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with
a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The following is a description of principal activities from which the Group generates its revenue.

s Trusteeship fees: Fees on trusteeship services are recognized at a point in time when the service obligations
are completed and when the terms of contracts are fulfilled.

e Advisory Fees: Revenue is recognised over time or when the outcome of a transaction can be estimated
reliably by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction in accordance with the underlying
arrangements

=  Others: Revenue is recognised over time when the outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably by
reference to the stage of completion of the transaction.

* Lending / Investments related Income

i S R s e




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements of IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited for the year
ended March 31, 2019

- Interestincome on investments and loans is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and the effective interest rate including interest on investments that may be classified as fair
value through profit or loss or fair value through other comprehensive income.

- Dividend income is accounted in the period in which the right to receive the same is established.

d) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement:

The Company recognizes a financial asset in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are measured at transaction price,

Subsequent measurement:

For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with the Company’s
business model for managing the financial asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset,

Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories:

i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost

ii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

ili. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost:

A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

-The Company’s business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to Cash and Bank balances, Trade and Other receivables, Loans and Other financial assets
of the Company. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

ii. Financial assets measured at FVTOCI:

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met;

- The Company's business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For the above category, income by way of interest and dividend, provision for impairment are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss and changes in fair value (other than on account of above income or expense) are

B gt
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements of lIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited for the year
ended March 31, 2019

recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in other equity. On disposal of such debt
instruments at FVTOCI financial assets, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in other equity is
reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

iii. Financial assets measured at FVTPL:

A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI as mentioned
above. This is a residual category applied to all other investments of the Company excluding investments in
associate Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value
changes are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition:
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when any of the following occurs:

- The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires;

- The Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially
transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset;

- The Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a contractual abligation to pay
the cash flows without material delay to one or more recipients under a "pass-through’ arrangement (thereby
substantially transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset);

- The Company neither transfers nor retains, substantially all risk and rewards of ownership, and does not
retain control over the financial asset.

On Derecognition of a financial asset, (except as mentioned in ii above for financial assets measured at

FVTOCI), the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are not measured at FVTPL. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL,
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured
at lifetime ECL.

* Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive
(i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company estimates cash
flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

*  The Company measures the loss allowance on financial assets at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the lifetime expected credit losses
and represent cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months weighted by the




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements of IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited for the year
ended March 31, 2019

probability of default after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the
next 12 months.

¢  When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default oceurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that
assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default oceurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost
or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables and financial assets arising from transactions with in the scope of Ind AS 115 the Company
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company
has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed
based on a provision matrix which takes into account histerical credit loss experience and adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and forward-
looking information.

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the obligor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,

s Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement:

The Company recognizes a financial liability in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument. Having regards to the terms and structure of issuance, Financial Liabilities are

categorized as follows:

(i) recognized at amartised costs

(i) recognized at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) including the embedded derivative component if
any, which Is not separated.

(iii) where there is an embedded derivative as part of the financial liability, such embedded derivative is
separated and recorded at fair value and the remaining component is categorized as on amortised costs.

Subsequent measurement:

(i) All financial liabilities of the Company are categorized as subsequently measured at amortized cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest method.

(1) All financial liabilities of the Company are categorized at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit and loss statement.

(iii) For derivatives embedded in the liability, the embedded derivative is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit and loss and the liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition: A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
ar expires.

e) Fair Value
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements of IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited for the year
ended March 31, 2019

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned
above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

= [n the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels, described as follows. The fair value hierarchy gives
the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 inputs) and the
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs).

Level 1 — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 —inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between |levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization at the end of each reporting period and discloses the same.

f) Measurement of foreign currency items at reporting date

Foreign currency monetary items of the Company are translated at the closing exchange rates. Non-monetary
items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction. Nonmonetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency, are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is measured.

Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

g) Income Taxes

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of
current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax:

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxahle profit for a period. Taxable profit differs
from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable ar deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible in accordance with

applicable tax laws. Current tax is measured using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit under Income tax
Act, 1961, Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. In case of
temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than business
combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized. Also, for temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of goodwill, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognized,

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary difference can be utilized. In case of




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements of IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited for the year
ended March 31, 2019

temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction (other than business
combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax assets are not
recognized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the benefits of part or all
of such deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there s convincing
evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no
longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period.

Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income, in which case, the current and deferred
tax income/expense are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the
Company has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on
the Company. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

h) Provisions and Contingencies

The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event
exists and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle such
obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material),
A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may,
but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such
abligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of

which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and cheques in hand, bank
balances, demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less.

i) Employee Benefits
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements of IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited for the year
ended March 31, 2019

Short Term Employee Benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term
employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service, The
Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of shart term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for services rendered as a liability (accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid.

Post-Employment Benefits:

(1) Defined contribution plans:
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Company pays fixed
contributions into state managed retirement benefit schemes and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions, if any, if the state managed funds do not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and preceding financial years. The
Company's contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the financial year to which they relate. The Company operates defined contribution plans pertaining to
Employee State Insurance Scheme and Government administered Pension Fund Scheme for all applicable
employees and the Company also operates Defined Contribution Plans pertaining to Provident Fund
Scheme,
Recognition and measurement of defined contribution plans: The Company recognizes contribution
payable to a defined contribution plan as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
employees render services to the Company during the reporting period. If the contributions payable for
services received from employees before the reporting date exceeds the contributions already paid, the
deficit payable is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the reporting date, the excess is
recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future
payments or a cash refund.

Il. Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity is post-employment benefit and is in the nature of defined benefit plan. The liability recognized
in the Balance Sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of defined benefit obligation at the Balance
Sheet date together with the adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gain or losses and the past service
costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated at or near the Balance Sheet date by an independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit plans:

The cost of providing defined benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each reporting date. The defined benefit obligations recognized in
the Balance Sheet represent the present value of the defined benefit obligations as reduced by the fair
value of plan assets, if applicable. Any defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit obligations resulting

from this calculation) is recognized representing the present value of available refunds and reductions in
future contributions to the plan.

All expenses represented by current service cost, past service cost if any and net interest on the defined
benefit liability (asset) are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Remeasurements of the net
defined benefit liability (asset) comprising actuarial gains and |losses and the return on the plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset), are recognized in
Other Comprehensive Income. Such remeasurements are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the subsequent periods.




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED

Notes farming part of Financial Statements of IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited for the vear
ended March 31, 2019

k) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of transaction costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as
an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalized, if any. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements of IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited for the year
ended March 31, 2019

1) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM) of the Holding Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments of the Company.

m) Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are
deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from
continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to he converted as at the beginning of
the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding
shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

n) Recent Accounting pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 116, Leases effective April
1, 2019. The Company is in the process of studying the impact on the financial statements.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the
determination of taxable profit /loss, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need to determine
the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments that the
companies have to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or
the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit / tax loss, tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix Cis annual periods beginning
on or after April 1, 2019. The Company is evaluating impact of the above amendment.

Amendment of Ind AS 12 — Income taxes in connection with accounting of dividend distribution - The amendment
clarifies that an entity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensives income or equity according to where the entity originally recognized those past transactions or
events. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2019, The Company Is evaluating the impact of the above.

o) KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires the management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods.,




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements of IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited for the year
ended March 31, 2019

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below:

- Defined Benefit Obligation
The costs are assessed on the basis of assumptions selected by the management. These assumptions include salary
escalation rate, discount rates, expected rate of return on assets and mortality rates.

- Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments

When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques, including the
discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgements and assumptions.

- Expected Credit Loss
The provision for expected credit loss involves estimating the probability of default and loss given default based on
the past experience and other factors.




IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED
Netes farming part of Financial Statéements for the Year ended Mareh 31, 2013

Note 3. First time adaoption of Ind AS

The Company has prepared opening balanca shaat as per Ind AS as of April 1, 2017 {teansition date) by recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition is
riquired by Ind AS, derecognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permittad to be recognisad by Ind AS, reclassifying items from 1-GAAP ta Ind AS as
required, and applying Ind AS to measure the rocognised assats and liabilities. The exemplions availed by the Company ara as follows:

(i) The Company has adapted the carrying valua determined in accordance with I-GAAP for all of its property plant and equipmant and intangible asssts as
deemad cosl of such assels at the transition date.

(ii) The Company has determined the classification of debt Instruments in terms af whethar they maeet the amortised cost criterla or the FYTOCI critaria based an
tha facts and circumstances that oxisted as of the transition dats,

(1ii) The Company has applied the Impairmant requiraments of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used ressonable and
supportable information that is svailable without undue cost or effort to determine the cradit risk at the date that financial instruments wera Initially racognisad
in order to compare It with the credit risk at the transition data, Further, as permitted by ind AS 101, the Company has not undortaken an axhaustive ssarch for
information whin determining, at the date of transition to Ind ASs, whether there have been sigaificant increases In eredit risk since initial recagnition.

{iv) The estimates as at April 1, 2017 and at March 31, 201B ara consistant with those made far the same dates in accordance with tho KGAAP.

Roconcillation of Total Equity as at April 1, 2017 and March 31,2018 {Tin Mn)
Equity Recanciliation Arataze Marc
As at 1st Aprll 2017 2018 Notes
As per IGAAP 341.20 443.87
Impalrmant on financial Inftruments . [0.24) 1
ESOP tomgnnsullnn Cost (0.53) lz.o_g 2
Deferred tax impact on above adjustments - 0.07 3
As par [nd AS 34067 1,67
Recancilintian of Total Camprehensive Income as at March 11‘201I {Zln Mn}
Reconcillation of Total Comprehensive Income As at 315t March 2018 Notes
Nat incoma under Indlan GAAP 102.67
Actuarial gain/ loss recognised on employee benefit in ather comprehansive
Income 0.0 4
Impairment on financial instruments (0.24) 1
[ESQP Camp tiah Cost (1.50) 2
Deferred tax Impact on abova adjustmants {0.20) 3
Net Income a5 per Ind AS 101,63
|Cthar Comprahansive Incame (0.64) 4
Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS 100.99
Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018 {Tin Mn)
5r.
No Farticulars As per IGAAP Ind AS adj As per Ind AS Notos
ASSETS
1 Financlal Assets
a) Cash and cash equivalents 5,22 . 5.22
{b) Rucaivabl N
{1} Trade recelvablas 84.30 (0.24) 24,006 1
11} Other receivables 0.10 . 010
ic) [teans 150,00 - 150.00
d) Investments 295,34 - 29514
{e] | Other financial assets 0,03 . 0.03
F Non-Financial Assets
(a) Currant 1ax sssets (net) 4,73 = 4,73
(b) Daferred tax assats (net) 2.93 0.07 3.00 3
5] Other non-financlal assets 0.09 - 0.09
Total Assots 542.74 {047) 54257
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 Financial Liabilities
(&) Payablag
Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro nntanrlsns and small antarprises - i -
(i} 1otal outstanding dues af creditors other than micro enterprisas and small
enterprises 26.74 - 26.74
(b Other financial liabilities 37.85 2.03 39,88 2
z Non-Financhal Liabilities
(a] Current 1ax liabilities (net) B.36 . 8.26
(b) Pravisions B.65 - 8.65
{c) Other non-financial liabliitios 17.37 - 17.37
EQUITY =
a Equity share capital 352.25 - 35225
(b} Other equity 9162 (2.20) BD.42
Total Liabilitles and Equity 84274 {0.17) 542,57




Effact af Ind AS ad

IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED
Naotes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2018

ptian an tha Balanee Shawt as at 1st April, 2017 (% in Mn)
3
No. Partlculars As por IGAAP Ind AS adjustments | As per Ind AS Notes
ASSETS
i Financial Assets
{a) _ |Cash and cash aquivalents 329.83 - 329.83
(B} Receivablos 2
{1} Trade receivables 17.27 - 17.27 1
{ll} Other recaivables . - -
i Non-Financlal Assets
{a} Current tax assets {ner) B.88 E 688
b) Deferrad tax assets (net} 6.71 6.71 k]
(3] Other non-financial assets 0.07 - 0.07
Tatal Assats 160.76 - 360.76
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 Financlal Uabilities
3] Payables .
Trads payablgs =
{I; tatal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small gniarprises 2
i} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
antRrpIi 8.92 8.92
1) Other payables 4
i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small :ntergrlsus .
i) total outstanding dues of creditars ather than mitro enterprises and small
enterprises .
{b) Qther financial liakilities 6.14 053 b.67 2
F Non-Financial Lisbilities .
(a)  |Provisions 256 - 2,506
lb Othar non:financial labllities 1.84 . 1.94
k] EQUITY g
3 Equity share capital 352,25 . 352,25
[(] Other equity {11,05) (0.53) {11.58]
Tatal Liabllities and Equity 360.76 = 360.76 |

Natas

LAfter the adoption af Ind AS the Company is required to calculate Expected Credit Loss{ECL) on all its financial assets. The impact shown abave is the impact

due to adoption of ECL by the Company.

2. ESOP eharge is accounted far using lair value method. The portion of ESOP charge payable to holding company is accordingly measured and recognised at fair
value. Under I-GAAP ESOP charge was calculated based on Intrinsie valua method,

3, Deferred tax is the tax Impact of all the adjustments between IGAAP and Ind AS.

4, Actuarial gains and losses pertaining to defined benefit obligations and re-maeasuramant pertaining 1o return on plan assets are recognised in Othar
Comprahansiva Income in accordance with Ind AS 19 and are nol reclassified to profit or loss.

5. Thera Is na impact on Cash Flow due to first time adoption of Ind AS,




HFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

T inMn)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 1, 2017

Cash and Cash Equlvalents (As per Ind AS 7 Statement of Cashflows)

Cash on hand

0.03

0.03

Balance with banks 1.56 5.19 9..79
In Deposit accounts (with original maturity of three months or less) - - 320.04
|Cash and cash equivalents (As per Ind AS 7 Statement of Cashflows) 1,59 5.22 329.83
Note 5. Receivables (Refer Note 26) (TinMn)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 1, 2017

(i) Trade receivables

Recejvables considered good - Unsecured

115.74 84.30 17.27

Total {I)- Gross 119.74 84.30 17.27
Less; Impairment |oss allowance 2.67 0.24 =

Total {i)- Net 117.07 84.06 17.27

ii) Other receivables

Receivables considered good - Unsecured 0.47 0.10 =
Total {li)- Gross 0.47 0.10 -
Less; Impairment loss allowance = R =
Total (ii)- Net 0.47 0.10 -

a) No trade receivables are due from directors or from other officers of the Company elther severally or jointly with any other person nor any trade
receivables are due from firms or private companles respectively in which any directors is a partner, director or a member as at 31st March 2019, 31st March

2018, 1st April 2017.

b) There are no trade receivables with significant increase in credit risk (SICR) as at 315t March 2019, 31st March 2018, 15t April 2017.

c) There are no credit impaired receivables as at 31st March 2019, 31st March 2018, 1st April 2017.

d) No trade or other receivables are Interest bearing.
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IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIM

ITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 8. Other financial assets

(Zin Mn)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 1, 2017
Unsecured
Other deposits 0.03 0.03 -
Receivables from Group/Holding company (Refer Note
31) 14.00 - -
Others 1.79 - :
Total 15.82 0.03 -

Note 9. Inventories - (At lower of cost and net realisable value)

(T in Mn)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 1, 2017
Commodities 197.51 - -
Total 197.51 - -
Aggregate Market Value- Stock in hand — Quoted 197.51 - 3




IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED
Notes farming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 10. Deferred Taxes

Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2019 are as follows:

(Zin Mn)
Recognised | MAT Credit | Recognised
Opening in profit or utilised/ | in/reclassified Closing
balance loss Created from OCI balance
Deferred tax assats:
Difference between book base and tax base
of property, plant & equipment and intangible
assels 3.00 {0.07) = - 253
Total deferred tax assets (A) 3.00 (0.07) - 2.93
Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2018 are as follows:
(% in Mn)
Recognised | MAT Credit | Recognised
Opening in profit or utilised/ | in/reclassified Clasing
balance loss Created from OCI balance
Deferred tax assets:
Difference between book base and tax base
of property, plant & equipment and intangible
assets 5.26 (2.26) - - 3.00
Utilised MAT credit 1.45 - (1.45) .
Total deferred tax assets (A) 6.71 (2.26) (1.45) - 3.00




IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 11. Other Non Financial Assets

(% in Mn)
Particulars h “;;:;“h M| b at:;;’;‘h 35| Asat April 1, 2017
Prepaid expenses-Unsecured 0.52 0.09 0.02
Others = - 0.05
Total 0.52 0.09 0.07
Note 12. Trade Payables T inMn)
Particulars Het :;:_;:h | M at:g:;ch | et April1, 2017
Trade payables
-(I)Tatal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer
note 12.1) }
-(il)Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
-Sundry creditors for expenses 19.14 0.37 0.03
-Accrued salaries and benefits 0.86 23.49 6.92
-Provision for expenses 4,25 2.88 1,97
Total 24.25 26.74 8.92

12.1. Disclosure under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
The following disclesure |s made as per the requirement under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2016 (MSMED) on
the basis of confirmations sought from suppliers on registration with the specified authority under MSMED. This has been relied upon by the

auditors.

Particulars

2018-19

2017-18

As at April 1, 2017

(a) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the year end

(b) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the year end

(c) Amount af interest paid and payments made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during the year

{d) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay In making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under the Act

{e) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end
mount of fu remaining due and payable even In The
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid

to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Act

There are no amounts due to the suppliers covered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. This
information takes into account only those suppliers who have responded ta the enquiries made by the Company for this
purpose. This has been relled upan by the auditors. No interest is payable in respect of the same.

Note 13. Other Financial Liabilities

®in Mn)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2019 2018 As at April 1, 2017
Payable ta holding company / group companies(Refer Note 31) 13.65 39.53 6,47
Others 0.20 0.35 0.20
Total 13.85 39.88 6.67
Note 14. Provisions: (Tin Mn)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2019 2018 As at April 1, 2017
Pravision for employee benefits 7.39 8.65 2.56
Total 7.39 8.65 2.56
Note 15. Other Non Financlal Liabilities: (Tin Mn}
Asat March 31, | Asat March 31,
Particulars 2019 2018 As at April 1, 2017
Statutory remittances 459.90 17.37 1.94
49.50 17.37 1.94
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IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2013

Note 17. Other Equity:

(% in Mn)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2018

As at Mareh 31, 2018

e

Az at April 1, 2017

Securities premium 1.40 1.40 1.40
Retained earnings 260,72 B8.02 [12.SB_|
Tatal 262.12 B89.42 (11.58)




IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 18. Fees and Commission Income (Tin Mn)
TR Y 2018-19 2017-18
Advisory fees and related income 419.46 306.63
Trustee fees 43.92 15.59
Referral fees 32.98 -
TOTAL 496.36 322.22
Note 19. Other Income {Tin Mn)
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Interest income 42.48 29.75
Change in fair value of investments (1.63) 27.75
Total 40.85 57.50




IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTLE SERVICES LIMITED
MNotes forming part of Financlal Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 20. Finance Cost

(T In Min)
2018-19 017-18
Particulars On financial liabllitias On finaneial On financial liabiiities On financial
measurad at fair valua | liabilities measured Total measured at falr valua | liabilities measured Tatal
through profitorless | at amaortised cost through profitorloss | atamortised cost
Interest on barrawin, 4.48 448 = 6.95 6.56
Total = 4.48 4.48 = 6.96 6.95
Note 21. Impalrment On Financlal instruments (T in Mn)
2018-19 2017-18
On financial | t Fln financial O financial On financlal Instruments
Particulars Instr instrumants
measured at fair value measured at amartised
through Gel measured at measured at falr o
¥ amortised cost | value through 001 s
On Racalvables - 243 - Q.24
Total - 2.43 - 0.24
Nate 22, Employee Benefit Expenses (T In Mnj
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Salaries and wages 180.31 14519
Cantribution to providant and other funds 422 2.74
Share based payments 1o employees 1.33 1.50
staff wellare expanses 233 0.11
|Gratuity ext (Refer Note 22.1) .02 041
Leave encashmeint {2.56) 1.50
Total 197.65 151.45
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22.1. Gratulty Abridged Disclosure Statement as Per Indian Accounting Standard 19 (ind AS 19) For the year ended 31st March 2018

{ZinMn)
ﬂ_rM: 2018-2019 2017-2018
| Type of benefit Gratuity — (Gratuity
| Country India India
| Reparting currency INR INR
Reporting standard Indlan Accounting Standard 19 | Indian Accounting 5tandard 19
{Ind AS 19) (ind AS 19)
Funding status Unfunded Unfunded
Starting period 01-Apr-18 01-Apr-17
| Date of reporting 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Period of reporting 12 Months 12 Months
Assumptions (F.Y 2017-2018)
Expected return on plan assots N.A, N.A,
Rate of discounting 7.80% 7.26%
Rate of salary increase 7.50% 5.00%
Rate of amnployes tiurnover For sarvice 4 years and below | For service 4 years and below
15% p.a. & thereafter 7.50% p.n.| 7.50% p.a. & thareaftar 5% p.a
Martality rate during employmant Indian Assured Lives Mortality | Indian Assured Lives Mortality
(2006-08) (2008&-08)
Martality rate aftor omploymant M.A. N.A.
A ptions (F.Y 2018-2019)
Expacted return on plan assets N.A. N.A,
Rate of discounting 7.59% 7.80%
Rate of salary increase 7.50% 7.50%
Rate of employee turnover Far service 4 years and balow | For service 4 years and below
15% p.a. & thereafter 7.50% p.a. [ 15% p.a. & therealter 7.50% p.a,
Martality rate during employment Indlan Assured Lives Mortality | Indian Assured Lives Mortality
(2006-08) (2005-08)
Maortality rate after employment N.A. N.A,
Table showing changa In the present value of projected benefit abligation
Prasent value of benefit obligation at the beginning of the period 5.48 1,93
Interast cost 0.43 0.14 |
Current sarvice cost 1.59 0.70
Past service cost : (0.43)
Llability transfarred in/ acquisitions 0.02 2.43
(Liabllity transferred out/ divestments) (0.53 (0.19)
(Gains)/ losses on curtallment 2 pr
{Liabilities extinguished on settlamant) Z 2
(Benefit paid directly by the employer) = =
{Benefit paid from the fund) T =
The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates - a
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - due to change in
sumptions : 0.11)
Actuarial {galns)/losses on oblipations - due to change in
i gy 0.13 0.54
Actuarial ]xains][lu:sq; on abligations - dus to experience 0.27 0,47
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the period 7.39 5.48
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Amount recognized in the balance sheet
]Presenr. value of benefit abligation at the end of the pariod) (7.39) (5.48)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the periad 3 E
Funded status (surplus/ (deficit)) {7.39) (5.48)
Net {liability)/asset recognized in the balance sheet (7.39) (5.48)
Net interest cost for current period
Present value of benefit obligation at the beginning of the period 5.48 193
{fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period) s s
Net liability/(asset) at the beginning 5.48 1.93
Interest cost 0.43 0.14
{Interest income) i &
Net Interast cost for current period 0.43 0.14
Exg recognized in tha statemant of profit or loss for current period
Currant servica cost 1.59 0.70
Nat interest cost D.a3 014
Past service cost - (0.43)
(Expected cantributions by the employaes) - -
(Gains)/losses on curtallments and settlements - -
Naet affact of changes In foraign exchange rates E &,
Exp racognized 2.02 0.41
Expenses recognized In the other comprahensive Income (OCI) for current period
Actuarial (gains)/lossas on abligation for the period 0.40 0.90
Return on plan assets, excluding Interaest Income - -
Change in asset ceiling - -
Net (incoma}/expense for the perlod recognized in oci 0.40 090
Balance sheet reconciliation
Opqnln_g net liability 5.48 1.93
Exponses recognized In statemaent of profit or |oss 2,02 0.41
Expenses recognized in OCI 0.40 0.90
Net liability/{asset) transfer in 0.02 2.43
Net (liability)/asset transfer out {0.53) {0.19)
(Benefit paid directly by the amployar) 2 =
(Employer's eantribution} - -
Net liahilll‘.ﬂ asset) recognized in the balance sheet 7.39 548
Other details -
No of active members 52 57
Per month salary for active members 4,95 5.04
Waighted average duration of pbo 10 10
Average expacted future service 9 8
Projected benefit abligation (pba) 7.39 5.48
Preseribed contribution for next year (12 months) - 2
Maturity analysis of the benefit payments
1st following year 0,47 0.35
2nd following year 0,52 0.37
3rd following year 057 0.40
ath following year 0.65 0.45 |
5th following year 085 0.50
|5um of years 6 to 10 392 2313
Sum of years 11 and above 9.76 B.34 |
sensitivity analysis
PBO on current assumptions 7.39 5 4K
|Delta effact of +1% change in rate of discounting (0.57) {0.43) |
Delta effact of -1% change in rate of discounting 0.66 0.50
Delta effact of +1% change In rate of salary increase 0.43 0.33
Delta effact of -1% change in rate of salary increase (0.40) {0.31)
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover 0.04 0.02
Delta affect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover {0.05) (u_cTz_I

The abave mentioned plans are valued by indepandent actuaries using the projected unit eredit method.

Ry
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22.2 Defined Contribution Plans:
The Group has recognised the following amounts as an expense and included in the
Employee Benefit Expenses.

The Company contributes to recognised provident fund for qualifying employees. Under the
scheme, the Company is required to contribute specified percentage of payroll costs to fund
the benefits.

(T in Mn)
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Contribution to provident fund 4,22 2.74
Contribution to ESIC 3 E
Contribution to labour welfare fund - -
Total 4.22 2.74
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Mote 23. Other Expenses (T in Mn)
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Operating expenses 0.52 .63
Rent and enargy cost 23.36 1411
Insurance - 0.80
Repairs & malntenance 0.22 0.12
Marketing, advertisement and business promotion expenses 0.39 0.36
Travelling & conveyance ) 14.99 12.29
Legal B professional fees 1.25 0.65
Communication 2.35 0.91
Software charges / Technology cost 7.05 4,12
Office & other expenses 11.37 10.91
Remuneration to Auditors ¢

Audit fees (net of GST Input credit) 0.15 0.15

Out Of pocket expenses - £
Corporate social responsibility expenses & donation (Refer Note 29) 1,05 7.79
Total 62.70 54.84
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Note 24. Income taxes
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 "Income Taxes"

{a) Major components of tax expense/ (income) {Tin Mn)
Sr. No. Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Statement of Profit and Loss: ———
{a) Profit and Loss section:
(i) Currant Incoma tax :
Currant Income tax expense 70.31 38.30
Tax expense in respect of earlier years - {U.D"ﬁ
70.31 38.23
(il) Deferred Tax: ===
Tax expense on origination and reversal of temporary differences 0.19 252
0.13 2.52
Income tax expense reported In the st it of profit or loss [{i}+(ll)] 70,50 4075
(b) Other Comprehensive Incoma (OCI) Section;
(i) Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periads:
(A) Doferred tax expense/{income):
on re-measurement of defined benefit plans 0.12 0.26
0.12 0.26
Incame tax exp reported In the other comprehensive income [{i}+(11)] 0.12 0.26
(b) Recanciliation of Income tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate applicable in India: {Tin Mn)
Sr. No. Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
(a)  |Profit/(loss) before tax 243.47 142.38
[b)  |Income tax expense at tax rates applicable including deferred tax 70.80 41.07
{c) (i) Tax on Income subject ta lower tax rate
[A) Gains on investments (including fair valuation) {0.38) (1.09)
(d) _ |{i) Tax on Income exempt from Tax - -
{il) Tax on expense not tax deductible
(A) Expenses not allowable as tax deductible as per tax laws - 1.56
(ili) Effect on deferred tax due to change in Income tax - (0.05)
(iv) Tax affect on various other items (0.02) (0.74)
Total effect of tax adjustments [(i) ta (v)] (0.40) {0.32)
{8)  |Tax expense recognised during the year 70.50 40.75
Effective tax rate 28.96% 28.62%
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Nata 25, Earnings Per Share:

Basic and diluted earnings par share ["EPS”] computed in accardance with INDAS 33 'Earnings per share”,

{% In Mn)
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Face value of equity shares in & fully paid up 10.00 10,00
BASIC
Prafit after tax as per statement of profit and loss A 172.97 101.63
Weighted average numbaer of shares subseribed [ 35,225,000.00 | 35,225,000.00
Fate value of equity shares {in ﬂ fully paid 10,00 10.00
[Basic EFS (T) AfB 4.81 2,69
DILUTED
Profit after tax as per statement of profit and loss A 17297 101.63
Welghted average numbar of shares subscribed B 35,225,000.00 |  35,225,000.00
Add: Patential equity shares on account of conversion of empleyee stack ¢ )
aption
Walghted average number of shares outstanding D=R+C 35,225,000.00 | 85,225 000.00
Diluted EFS () A/D 491 2,89

wirmie = (AT e
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Note 26. Disclosure Pursuant to Ind AS 107 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures"

Financial Risk Management
264, Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default an its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk assassement on varlous components is described below:

The Group's trade receivables primarily includes recelvables from Trusteeship and Advisory services arrangements. The Group has made lifetime expected credit loss provisian based on provision

1) Trade recelvables, Other receivables and Other Financial Assets
matrix which takes inte account historlcal experience in collection and credit losses.
Credit Risk on Other Financlal assets is considered insignificant as the counterparty risk does not exists and considering the nature of such assets,
Movement in the Expected Credit Loss/ Impalrment Loss allowance with regards to trade receivables is as follows :
{Zin Mn)
Particulars 31/03/2019 Year Ended 31/03/2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.24 <
Movement in expected credit loss allowances
on trade receivable 2.43 0.24]
Balance at the end of tha year 2.67 0.24
2) Others

In addition to the above, balances and deposits with banks, investments in bonds, debt securities and In units of funds and other financial assets also have exposure to credit risk,
Credit risk on balances and deposits with banks is limited as these balances are generally held with banks and finaneial institutions with high credit ratings and/or with capital adequacy ratio above

the preseribed regulatory limits.

Cradit Risk on Other Financial assets is considered insignificant considering the nature of such assets and absence of caunterparty risk,

268. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its short-term financial obligations, The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities and by having access to funding through an adequate amount of credit lines. Further, The Company has well defined Asset Liability Managemant (ALM) Framewark with an appropriste
organizational structure to regularly monitor and manage maturity profiles of financial assets and financlal llabllities Including debt financing plans, cash and cash equivalent instruments to ensure
liquidity. The Company seeks to malntain flexibility in funding mix by way of sourcing tha funds through money markets, debt markets and banks to meet Its business and liquidity requirements.

The following table shows the maturity prafile of Financial liabilitias:

(Tin Mn;
As at 315t March 2019

Financial liabilities Total Less than 1 months 1 months to & months | 6 months to 1 year Between 110 5 years 5 years and abave
Trade Payables 24,25/ 24,25 . - . -
Other financlal liabilities 13,85 13.85 - - E -
Total 38.10 38.10 - - - =

Tin Mn

As at 31st March 2018
Financial llabliities Total Less than 1 th 1 thste 6 th:
RN AN T maHE mahETe o manth & months to 1 year Between 1 to § years 5 years and above

Trade Payables 26.74 26.74 - - - :
Other financial liabilitles 39,88 39.88 i . - R
Total 66,62 66,62 - - L -

{Tin Mn

As at 1st April 2017
Financlal liabilitles Total Less than 1 months | 1 months te 6 manths
6 months to 1 year |Between 1to 5 yaars 5 years and above

Trade Payables B892 892 2 - - .
Other financial llabilities 6,67 6.67 - . = =
Tatal 15,59 15.59 - = - -

26C. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of any loss In future earnings, in realizable fair values or in futures cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument as explained below,

26C.1 Currency Risk

The Company (Including its fareign subsidiaries) does not run a proprietary trading position In forelgn currencies and foreign currency denominated Instruments Hewsver the Company does hav
soime exposure to foreign curréncies by mainitaing cash balance In currencies other than reporting/functional currencies,
The carrying amount of Financial assets and liabilities subject ta foreign oxchange risk for FY 2018-2019 are as below:

GBP

| RME

(T in Mn|
| 56D I

Particulars
Cash and cash eguivalents

0,02]

0.01]

Below Is the sensitivity analysis for the year considering 1% appreciation/|

depraciation):

2018-19

2017-18

Increase

Impact on Profit and Loss after tax

Impact an Equity

Decrease

Impact on Profit and Loss after tax

Impact an Equity

T DL .

26C. ilerest 1z

api.

N0

gfinancials assets or liabilities which are exposed to intarest rate risk.
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26C3. Other Price Risk

Other price risk is related to the change in market referonce price of the Investments which are fair valued and exposes the Company to price risks.
The carrying amount of financlal assets and liabilities subject to. price risk is as below:

{Zin Mn)
Particulars As at 31st March 2018|  As at 315t March 2018  As at 1st April 2017
Financial Assets
Investments - 205.34 -
285.34
A hypothetical 100 basls point shift In the beachmark rate will have impact on the profit and loss as below:
{T in Mn)
2018-19 2017-18
|Increase of 100 basis point
impact on Profit and Loss after tax . 2,10
Impact on Equity . 2.10]
Dacrease of 100 basis paint
Impact on Profit and Loss after tax - (2.10)
Impact on Equity ¥ (2.10)

26D0.Capital Management

The Company’s capital management Is Intended to create value for shareholders. The assessment of Capital level and requirements are assessed having regard to long-and short tarm strategies of
the Company and regulatory capital requirements of its businesses and constituent ontities.

26E. Category Wise Classification for applicable Financial Assets and Liabilities

(T in Mn)
As at 315t March 2019
Sr No. Particulars Measured at fair value | value through other
Measure at amorised through profit or comprehensive
cost loss(P/L) Income {OCI1) Total
Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 1.59) - 3 1.59
{b) Receivables -
{I) Trade receivables 117.07 ¥ . 117.07
{H1) Other receivables 0.47 = - 0.47
{e) Loans 396,70 - - 396.70
{d) Other financial assets 15.82 - - 15.82
Total 531.65 = - 531.65
Financial Liabilities
{a) Payables -
(I)Trade payables =
{i] total outstanding dues of micra
enterprises and small enterprises z R
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micra enterprises and small enterprisas 24.25/ 4 - 24,25
{b) Other financial liabilities 13.85 - - 13.85
Total 38.10 - - 38.10 |
{Tin Mn)
As at 31st March 2018
Vieasured &t 1alr
SrNo. Particulars Mueasurad at falr value | value through other
Measure at amorised through profit or comprehensive
cost loss(P/L) income (OCI) Total
Financial Assets ==
{a) Cash and cash equivalents 5.22 = g 5.22
{b) Receivables - :
(1) Trade recaivables B4.06 = - 84,06
{Il) Other receivables 0.10 € - 0.10
c) Loans 150.00 d : 150.00
d) Investments - 295.34 . 295.34
&) Other financial assets 0.03 i - 0.03
Tatal 1_35.&1 295.34 = 534.75
Financial Liabilities
(a) Payablas
{I)Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enlerprises -
{ii) total outstanding duas of creditors other
than micra enterprises and small enterprises 26.74 . ] 26,74
(b) Othar financlal liabilities 39.88 - . 39.88
Total 66.62 = - 66.62 |

i
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{T In Mn)
As at 1st April 2017
Measured of fair
5r No. Particulars Measured at falr value | value through othar
Measura at amorised through profit or camprehensiva
_cost loss{P/L) incoma (OCH) Total
Financial Assets
[a) Cash and cash equivalents 329.83 A 3 329,83
{b) Recelvables ‘ i
(1) Trade receivables 17.27 5 f 17.27
{Il) Other receivables : B 2 =
Total 347.10 . - 347.10
Financial Liabilitles
(3) Payables z
{I)Trade payables -
(i} total outstanding dues of micra
enterprises and small enterprises - .
(Il) total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small enterprises 8,92 " . 8.92
(b} Other financial liabilities 6.67 z . 6.67
Total 15.59 = = 15.59

26E.1. Fair values of financial Instrumants
The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hlerarchy, which reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
— Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments,
= Level 2: Inputs other than quated prices Included within Level 1 that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or Indirectly (i.e. derived from prices), This category includes instruments valued
using: quoted market prices In active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar Instruments in markets that are considered lass than active: or other valuation techniques
in which all significant Inputs are directly or indirectly observable fram market data.
= Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the valuation technique includes inputs that are not observable and the unabservable inputs have a
significant effect on the Instrument’s valuation. This category includes instrumants that are valued based on quoted prices for similar Instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments ar
assumptlons are required to reflect differences between the instruments.
The Company uses widely recognised valuation madels to determine the falr value of common and simple financial instrumants, such as Interest rate and currency swaps, that use only abservabln
market data and require little management judgernent and estimation. Observable prices or model inputs are usually avallable In the market for listed dabt and equity securities, exchange-traded

derivatives and simple OTC derivatives such as intarest rate swaps. The avallabllity of observable market prices and model inputs reduces the need for management judgement and estimation and
also reduces the uncertainty associated with determining fair values,

26E. 1a. Financlal instruments measured at falr value = Fair value hierarchy

The following table analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date, by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement [s categarised.
The amounts are based on the values recognised in the statement of financlal position, The falr values include any deferred differences between the transaction price and the fair value an initial
recognition when the fair value is based on a valuation technique that uses unobservable inputs.

(T in Mn)
Recurring falr value measurements at 31.03.2018
Financial instr maeasured at fair valug Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Investments in others 295,34 - . 295.34
Total Assets 295.34 - = 295.34
26E. 1b Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilitles measured at amortised cost {TinMn)
Financial Assets and liabilities which are As at 315t March 2019 As at 31st March 2018 As at st April 2017
maasurad at amortised cost for which fair
values are disclosed Carrying Value Falr Value Carrying Value Falr Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial Assets
Casth and cash equivalents 1.59/ 1.59 5,22 5.22 329.83 329,83
Receivabl
{l) Trade receivables 117.07 117.07 B4.06 84.06 17.27 17.27
{1} Other racelvables 0.47 0.47 0.10 0.10 . -
|Loans 396.70 396,70 150.00 150.00 -
Other financial assets 15.82 15.82 0.03 0.03 -
Financial Liabilities
(I Trade payables
{i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises . - i
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micra enterprises and small enterprises 24.25 24.25 26,74 26.74] 8.92 8.9;
Other financial liabilitias 13.85 13.85 39,88 39,88 6.67 6.6)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, Icans and other financial assets are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short term nature.

Financial llabilities measured at amartised cost:

The carrying amounts of trade payables and other financlal liabllities are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short term nature.

T eyt 5
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Nota 27, Capital, Othar Commitmants and Contingant Liabllities at Balanca Sheat data:

Capital and Other Commitments
The Company does not have any outstanding commitments of capital expenditure, as on the balance sheet date.

Contingent Liabillities
The Company does not have any contingent liability not provided for, as on the balance sheat date,

Note 28. The Company oparates from and uses the pramises, Infrastructure and other facilities and services as provided to it by its halding Company/group companies,
which are termed as "Shared Services'. Hitherta, such shared services conslsting of administrative and other revenue expenses paid for by the Company were identified
and recovered/recoverable from the Company based on reasonable management estimates, which are canstantly refined in the light of additional knowledge gained
relevant to such estimation, These oxpanses are recoverad on an actual basis and the estimates are used only where actual expenses were difficult to detormine,

Note 29. Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year , the Company has spent 1.05 million as against 1.05 million required to be spent as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Corporate
Social Respensibility (CSR), The Company was focused on implementing long term high impact projects approved by the C5R Committee, The Company is committed to
supparting development of the country by contributing ta achieving the sustainable development goals and all its activities are directed towards this, Gaing forward these
projects will be consolidated and scaled to achieve a larger and deeper impact. The key facus areas Includes maintenance of environmental sustainability, education and
health areas,

Nate 30. Segment Reporting

In the opinien of the management, there is only one reportable business segment Fund Management/Advisory as envisaged by Ind AS 108 'Dperating Segments’, as
prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Accordingly, no separate disclosure for segmant reporting is requited o be made in the financial statements of the Company.
Secondary segment based on geography has not been presented as the Company operates primarlly in India and the Company perceives that there is no significant
differance In its risk and returns in operating from differant geagraphic areas within India.
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Note 31. Related Party Disclosuras:
Related party disclosures for the yesr ended 315t March, 2019

a) List of Related Partlos:

Nature of relationshi Name of party
Mr. Yatin Shah, Directar
Director/ Key Managarial Parsonal Mr. Sandeep Jethwani, Director
Mr. Girish Venkam_rwan, Whu1e-llme Oirectar E_l:lt‘ Chief Executlva OHlcar
Huldin‘ Company IIFL Wealth B Limltad
Other Related Partles * 1IFL Holdings Limited
{IFL Asset Management Limlted
IIFL Trustas Limitad

IIFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited
IIFL Wealth Finance Limited
)E. Distribution Services Limiled
IIFL Waalth Advisors Led
|IIFL Wealth Securities [FSC Limlted (w.e.f June 22, 2018)
|IIFL Waealth Advisars (India) Limited (w.e.f Nevambaer 22, 2018)
\IFL Altiare Advisors Private Limited (w.e.l Novernber 05, 2018)
Faliow Subsidiaies \IFL Wealth Employee Benefit Trust (w.e.f August 01, 2018]
IIFL Private Wealth Management {Dubai) Limitad
IIFL {Asin) Pte, Limited
IIFL Inc.
IIFL Private Wealth Hong Kong Limited

IIFL Asset Management (Mauritius) Limited (Formerly 1IFL Private Waealth {Mauritius) Lid)
[ITFL Private Wealth (5uisse) SA {upto Feh 28, 3019)

|IFL Securities Pte. Limited

|IFL Capital (Canada) Limited

[UFL Capital Pta. Limited

’ﬁL Securities Limited [Formerly knawn as india Infoline Limited)

I

IFL Commadities Limited sFulmerII known as India Infoling Enmmud"m?s Limited)
India Infaline Financa Limitad

IIFL Home Finance Limited

WIFL Insurance Brakers Limited {Formerly known as India Infoline Insurance Brokers Limited)

N

Othr Related Parties IIFL Management Services Limited (Formerly Indla infoline Insurance Sarvices Limited)

[1IFL Waaith (UK) Limited

ﬂfLCanIial Inc.

IIFL Facilities Services Limited !Furmerly known as IIFL Real Estate Limited)

Clara Devaolopers Private Limitad

PHB:tn Microfinance Limited (w.e.f March 01, ﬁl?l
IFL Assel Reconstruction Limited {w.e.f May 09, 2017)

Mr. Karan Bhagat

e, Amit Shah (resigned w.e.f. January 24, 2019)

Mr. Nirmal Jain

Mr, Venkatarsman R

Ganeral Atlantic Singapare Fund Pta Limited

_eri. Shilga Bhbnat jSEuuse of Mr. Karan Bhagat)

Mrs. Madhu Jain (Spouse of Mr, Nirmal Jain)

Mr. Prakashchandra Shah {Relativa of Mr. Yatin Shah)

India Infoline Fuundation

Kyrush Invostmants

_!_(Jlru:h Realty Private Limited

NOFHH Realty Privale Limited
ndia Allernatives Investment Advisors Private Limited |Fellow Subsidiary Upto March 31,
2017)

Yatin Investment
Orpheaus Trading Private Limited
Ardent Impex Private Limited
SEnt:n Capital Limited
Spaisa PIP Limited
Spaisa Insurance Brokers Limitad
MM Consultants Private Limited
Sunder Bhawar Ventures Private Limited
|Sunder Bhanwar Hollday Homa Private Limited { Upto Mar 04, 2018]
Khimji Kunver|i & Co (Chartered Accountant Firm of Mr. Nilesh Vikamsey)
Yatin Prakash Shah (HUF)
Nirmal Madhu Family Private Trust
Kalki Family Private Trust
Kush Family Private Trust
Kyra Family Private Trust
Bhagat Family Private Trust
Kyrush Family Private Trust
Naykla Family Private Trust
Priskash Shah Family Private Trust
Naysa Shah Family Private Tfu_ll'l

|Klaah Shah Famlly Privata Trust

Other related partles




IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED

Notes fi Ing part of Fi ial § far tha Yenr anded March 31, 2019

* 1) bate of Demerger — 1 April 2017 being the appointed date in terms of the Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst India Infoline Finance Limited ("IIFL Finance"}, 1IFL Haldings Limited {"IIFL
Heldings™), India Infoline Media and Research Services Limited ("IIFL M&R™), IFL Socurities Limitad ("IIFL Securities”), IIFL Wealth Management Limited {“IFL Wealth") and IIFL Distribution Services
Limited ("lIFL Distribution”), and their respective shareholders, under Sections 230 - 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companles Act, 2013 (“Schame”) appravied by the Board of Directors of

the Holding Company at its meeting held on January 31, 2018, and approvad by tha Natianal Company Law Tribunal Bench at Mumbai (Tribunal) an March 07, 2019 under the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013,

b} Significant Transactions with Related Parties

(Tin Mn}
Other Related '
i Other Related Parties
Nature of Transaction Ky :ﬂnnngnllm Helding Campany Partias *{Uitimate Fellow *(Group Companies | Other Relatod Parties Total
erson Holding Company Subsldlaries
upta Aprll 01, 2018) upte April 01, 2018)
Purchase of Gold
IIFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited - - - 201,86 - . 201.86
ICD Taken
JIFL Wealth Management Limitad - 674,80 - - - . 674,80
* L&,SGT.Dm . - - T (E,EET.MI
IIFL Distribution Services Limited = - 2 . - - -
- - - 15.00) . . {800}
IIFt Wealth Finance Limited . . : 2,710,00 - - 2,710,00
z T : |568.00) - - 568.00]
IC0 Repald
|IFL Waalth Managerment Limitad L2 574.80 ' < = = 674,80
- {6.567.00) - . - - {6,567.00}|
IIFL Distribution Services Limited = - = g . . -
: : : (5.00) - - 5.00)
IIFL Waalth Finance Limited £ - # 1,710.00 - - 2,710.00
- - - {568.00) : . (568.00)
ICD Given
IIFL Distribution Services Limited = = 3 . - - -
IIFL Wealth Management Limited 4 4,183.00 = & = 4 4,183.00
- (2.721.00) - . - - {2,721.00}
IIFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited - - - 416,50 - . 416,50
IIFL Wealth Finance Limited = e £ 414.80 - 414.80 |
ICD Recaivad Back
IIFL Wealth Management Limited - 3,936.30 - . . 5 3,936.30
E 12,571.00) z z : : (2,571.00)
IIFL, Aharnate Asset Advisars Limitad - . s 416.50 = o 416.50
IFL Wealth Finance Limited - - - 414.80 - [ 414,80
Interest Income on ICD
IIFL Wealth Management Limited = 30.51 3 - = . 30,51
. (20.56) : - - - {20.56)
IIFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited - - - 0.58 . X 0,58
|IFL Waalth Finance Limitad = : . 0.12 - - 0.12
Interest Expanie on 1CD
IIFL Waalth Managamant Limited - Q.57 - . - - 0.57
- {643} C - . : (6.43)
WIFL Distribution Sarvices Limited . - - - - .
o vl £ (0.01) : - (0.01)
JIFL Wealth Finance Limited - - - 3.091 - . 3.91
: {0.:51)] - - {0.51)
R lon to Key M rial
Girish Venkataraman 2.76 - - - - . 2.76
{13.74) . . - - (13.78)
Fees Earned For Services (including
IIFL Wealth Management Limited - 24.00 - - - . 24.00 |
- {24.00! . B - - (2a.00)|
Samasta Microfinance Umited - - - - 25.00 - 35,00
Feas/ Incurred/| b d
IIFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited - - - 22,13 . . 22.13
: : : (23.60) - . (23.60
|IFL Distribution Serviees Limited £ = . 8.83 - - B.83
£ 5 a [9.48) . : 9.48)
Corporate Soclal Respansibllity
ENDENsEs
India Infoline Foundation - - - - 1.05 1,05




IIFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019
Allocation / Relmbursement OF
Exoentes Paid

IIFL Waalth Manageamant Limitad s 35.87 - - L - 35.87
- (21.28) . - £ : (21.28))
Gther Funds Recelved
1IFL Wealth Managemant Limitad . 0.08 - = y . 0.08
- (3.54) . - - {3.54)
IIFL Distribution Services Limited = - - 0.24 . 0.24
. - - (0.24) B - (0.24)
Other Funds Faid
IIFL Wealth Management Limited = 11.93 . - . 11.93
- [6.72) - - z = (6.72)
IIFL Alternate Assot Advisors Limited - . = . 5 %
= - (0.31) <. L {0.31)
1IFL Distribiution Services Limited - - 0.24 - 0.24
|IFL Asset Management Limited = 5 = 2. x = 0.05 |
£ & {0.01) = £ {0.01)
Amount dus to / fram related parties (Clasing Balance) (T in Mn)
|Mature of Transaction Key Managerial Holding Company Other Related Fallow| Other Related Parties| Other Related Parties| Total|
Parson Parties *(Ultimata| Subsidlarles| *(Group Companias
Holding Company| upta April 01, 2018)
upta April 01, 2018)
|Sundry Recelvables
IIFL Distribution Services Limited - - - 0.38 . £ 0.38
IIFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited - - . 13.62 - : 13.62
Sundry Payables
IIFL Wealth Management Limited < 717 . - . 7.17
(4.61) £ - - [4.61)
IIFL Distribution Sarvices Limited . - - - . = 2
. - . 10.91) - . {0.91)
IIFL Alternate Asset Advisars Limited : = = el = o &
. . - (25.49) . - {25.49)
IiFL Wealth Finance Limited 2 . 0.20 * . 0.20
- =! (0.20) - z, 0.20)
ICD Given - - - . - -
IIFL Wealth Management Limited a96.70 = - . 396,70
{150.00) - . - [150.00)




IFL INVESTMENT ADVISER AND TRUSTEE SERVICES LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2019

Note 32. Subsequent Events
There were no subsequent events from the date of financial statements till the date of adoption of accounts.

Note 33. Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved for issuance by the Board of Directors on May 13, 2019,

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

M \( Bﬂw,

Glrlsh Venkataraman Sandeap .I/l'.hwani
Whole Time Director Director
(DIN: 06981605) (DIN: 07984864)
Mﬂf

Place : Mumbai Triparna Banerjee Kavita Khatrl

Date : May 13th, 2019 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary




- Chartered Accountants
DEIOltte Indiabulls Finance Centre
= Tower 3, 27"-32" Floor
Haskins & SellsLLP
Elphinstone Read (West)

Mumbal - 400013
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6185 4000
Fax: +91 22 6185 400

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of IIFL Investment Adviser and Trustee Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IIFL Investment Adviser and
Trustee Services Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2019, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the

year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2019, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Ruies made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained

by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors’ report including
Annexures to Directors’ Report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Directors’ report is expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27" - 32 Flaor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumnbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India,
(LLP Identification Mo, AAB-8737)
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the Directors’
report including Annexures to Directors’ Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with

governance as required under SA 720 ‘The Auditor's responsibilities Relating to Other
Information’

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement

that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management

either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise fram fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is



Deloitte
Haskins & Sells LLP

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ablility to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes

in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account,

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.
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f)

9)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,
in our opinion and to the best of information and explanations given to us, the

remuneration to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as

amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us:

i. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position

il. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses,

iii. There were no amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

Y@amwmﬂ""’

(Pallavi A Gorakshakar)

(Partner)
(Membership No. 105035)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13 May 2019
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IIFL Investment
Adviser and Trustee Services Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction

with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,

and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit apinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

®
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the criteria for internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

WW‘W)W
Pallavi A. Gorakshakar

(Partner)
(Membership No. 105035)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13 May 2019
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our repart of even date)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The Company does not have any fixed assets and hence reporting under clause (i) of
the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

The trading inventory held by the company has been verified by the management
with demat holding statements during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification is reasonable. No discrepancies were noticed on verification of inventories
when compared with books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted
unsecured loans to companies covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of which:

(2) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the Company'’s interest.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest have
been regular as per stipulations.

(c) There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet
date.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given ta us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investments.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

accepted any deposit during the year and hence reporting under clause (v) of the
CARO 2016 is not applicable.

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business / activities, reporting under
clause (vi) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(8) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Provident Fund, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and
other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv)

According to the information and explanations given to us Employees’ State
Insurance, Excise Duty and Customs Duty is not applicable to the Company.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,

Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues
in arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax and Goods and Service Tax which have not

been deposited as on 31 March 2019 on account of disputes.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial
institutions, banks and government, The Company has not issued any debentures.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause
(ix) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinien and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the

reguisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule
V to the Companies Act, 2013

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
CAROQO 2016 is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause (xiv) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable,
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(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with

its directors or directors of the holding Company or persons connected with them
and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable,

(xvi) The Caompany is not reguired to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

WMLMWJM"
Pallavi A. Gorakshakar

Partner
(Membership No.105035)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 13 May 2019
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